
             
REGUALR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY,  JANUARY 19, 2022, AT 5:30 PM 

61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CA  92252 

 

ON MARCH 4, 2020, CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM DECLARED A STATE OF EMERGENCY IN 

CALIFORNIA AS A RESULT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC, FOR WHICH STATE AND SAN BERNARDINO 

COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH OFFICIALS HAVE CONTINUED TO RECOMMENDED MEASURES TO PROMOTE 

SOCIAL DISTANCING. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953, AND CORRESPONDING 

FINDINGS OF THE BOARD THAT CURRENTLY REMAIN IN EFFECT, THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC 

LOCATION FOR THIS MEETING AND MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND PUBLIC MAY 

ATTEND THIS MEETING BY TELEPHONE OR VIDEO CONFERENCE. 
 

To join by Zoom please click the below link: 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88561148044?pwd=L0lzSXpHdGhiYkxRbEJrSEo2TVpEdz09 
 
 

Or you may join by phone at 1-253-215-8782, Meeting ID:  88561148044 Passcode: 908040 

 

AGENDA 
 

 1. CALL TO ORDER - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. 

 

 

7. 

 

 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM (ROLLCALL) - 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA -  

STATE OF EMERGENCY FINDINGS – GOVT. CODE § 54953(e) – The Board shall, 
by majority vote, determine whether the conditions justifying the adoption of District 
Resolution No. 21-1035 on October 6, 2021, remain in effect, such that the Board will renew 
its findings in Resolution No. 21-1035 for an additional 30 days. Such conditions include that 
(1) the State of Emergency declared by California Governor Newsom on March 4, 2020, 
relative to the COVID-19 Emergency, remains in effect; and (2) State or Local Health 
Officials continue to recommend or impose measures to promote social distancing in 
connection with such Emergency, and/or due to existing rate of community transmission and 
the small meeting space available to the District for in-person attendance, the provision of a 
unrestricted physical location for the District’s meetings would present imminent risks to the 
health and safety of attendees.  Recommended Motion:  That the Board of Directors 
renew its findings set forth in Resolution No. 21-1035 for additional 30 days.  

PUBLIC COMMENT – This is the time set aside for public comment on any District-

related matter not appearing on the agenda. Government Code prohibits the Board from 

taking action on these items, but they may be referred to for future consideration. Please state 

your name and limit your comments to 3 minutes. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Matters on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in 

nature and will be enacted in a single motion without discussion.  Any Board member or 

member of the public may request that an item be removed from the Consent Calendar and 

acted on separately. 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 1 of 78

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88561148044?pwd=L0lzSXpHdGhiYkxRbEJrSEo2TVpEdz09


Pages 4-14 

 
 

Pages 15-26 

 
Pages 27-29 

 

Page 30 

 

Pages 31-43 

 
 

Pages 44-78 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8. 

 

 

 

9. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

10. 

 

 

 
11. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

• September 2021 Check Register (reviewed by Finance Committee on January 12, 

2022). 

• November 2021 Check Register (reviewed by Finance Committee on January 12, 

2022). 

• Draft Minutes of December 15, 2021 

• Draft Minutes of December 23, 2021 

• 1st Quarter Ending 09/30/2021 Financial Report (reviewed by Finance Committee on 

January 12, 2022). 

BY-DIVISION/DISTRICT BASED ELECTIONS UPDATE – Acting GM Sarah 

Johnson- Recommend that the Board of Directors provide the Acting General Manager 

authority to enter into an agreement between the Joshua Basin Water District and 

Cooperative Strategies to provide demographic services to assist in the preparation of 

adjusted By-Division electoral maps based on 2020 Federal Census data. 
 

CONSIDERATION OF BOARD VACANCY CANDIDATES – Jeff Hoskinson, Legal 

Counsel – 

A. Candidate Forum – Opening Remarks and Introduction of Selection Process 

(1) Introductory discussion about the District Process by Board of Directors 

President Tom Floen. 

(2) Candidates called by Board of Directors President Tom Floen 

• Barbara Delph 

• David Fick 

(3) Candidates will have allotted time (to be specified) to introduce themselves and 

discuss their interest in serving on the Board. 

(4) Questions from the Board members to candidates/discussion. 

B. Board of Directors to consider appointment of and effective date for new 

Director.  Recommended Motion:  That the Board appoint ___________ as a Board  

Director to serve the remainder of the seat vacated by former Board Director Mike 

Reynolds, with such appointment to be effective as of February 2, 2022. 
 

DIRECTOR REPORTS/COMMENTS– 
 

• Kathleen Radnich, Public Information Consultant – 
 

• Finance Committee – January 12, 2022, at 9:00 a.m. - President Floen & Director 

Unger 

• Mojave Water Agency Board of Directors Meeting – January 13, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. 

– Director Jarlsberg 

FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS –  
 

• Mojave Water Agency Board of Directors Meeting – January 27, 2022 at 9:30 a.m. – 

Director Unger 

• JBWD Board of Directors Meeting – February 2, 2022, at 5:30 p.m. 
 

• Mojave Water Agency Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) – February 3, 2022, at 

10:00 a.m. 
 

• Citizens Advisory Council – Chairperson Barbara Delph – February 8, 2022, at 6:00 

p.m. 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 2 of 78



 

 
 

12. 

 

 

 
13. 

 

• Finance Committee – February 9, 2022, at 9:00 a.m. –  
 

• Water Resources & Operations Committee – February 9, 2022, at 10:30 a.m. –  

 

• JBWD Regular Board of Directors Meeting – February 16, 2022, at 5:30 p.m. 

 

CLOSED SESSION (TO BE HELD AT OR AFTER 7:00 P.M.) -– Pursuant To 

Government Code Section 54957 (b)(1) Public Employee 

Discipline/Dismissal/Release. 
 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 
 

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

ADJOURNMENT –  

 

   

INFORMATION 
 

The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. Members of the public wishing to 

attend the meeting that require other reasonable modifications or accommodation to facilitate such attendance should contact 

Beverly Krushat at 760-974-0072 or bkrushat@jbwd.com as soon as feasible before the meeting to make such request.  
 

Availability of agenda materials:  Agenda exhibits and other writings that are disclosable public records distributed to all or a 

majority of the members of the Joshua Basin Water District Board of Directors in connection with a matter subject to discussion 

or consideration at an open meeting of the Board are available online at jbwd.com for public inspection, or in the District’s office, 

61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, CA 92252 (“District Office”). If such writings are distributed to members of the Board less  

than 72 hours prior to the meeting, they will be available at the reception desk of the District Office and on-line at jbwd.com 

during business hours at the same time as they are distributed to the Board members. 
 

Disability-related accommodations:  The Joshua Basin Water District Board of Directors meeting room is wheelchair accessible. 

If you require any special disability-related accommodations (e.g., access to an amplified sound system, etc.) please contact Ms. 

Krushat at the District Office at (760) 974-0072 during business hours at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled 

meeting. This agenda can be obtained in alternative format upon written request to Ms. Krushat in the District Office, at least 

seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled meeting. 

   
 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 3 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 4 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 5 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 6 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 7 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 8 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 9 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 10 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 11 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 12 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 13 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 14 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 15 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 16 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 17 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 18 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 19 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 20 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 21 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 22 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 23 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 24 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 25 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 26 of 78



 

 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2021 
 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – President Unger called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. via 

teleconference. 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM – President Unger asked for a rollcall and the following Directors were 

present; President Unger, Vice President Floen, Director Doolittle, Director Jarlsberg, and Director Reynolds via 

teleconference. 

STAFF PRESENT –Mark Ban, General Manager, Anne Roman, Director of Finance, Jim Corbin, Director of 

Operations, Sarah Johnson, Director of Administration, Autumn Rich, Accounting Supervisor and Beverly 

Krushat, Executive Assistant are in attendance via teleconference. 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT – Kathleen Radnich, Public Information Consultant and Jeff Hoskinson, Legal 

Counsel 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – 

MSC¹ (Floen/Reynolds) 5/0/0 motion carried to approve the Agenda. 

Ayes:  Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, Reynolds, and Unger   

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

STATE OF EMERGENCY FINDINGS – GOV’T CODE §54953(e) – The Board of Directors voted 

unanimously to extend the State of Emergency Findings for another 30 days. 

MSC¹ (Reynolds/Jarlsberg) 5/0/0 motion carried to extend the State of Emergency Findings for another 30 days. 

Ayes:  Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, Reynolds, and Unger   

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 

PUBLIC COMMENT – Jim Corbin, Director of Operations thanked the Board for the treats they gave to the 

employees and to also thank Director Mike Reynolds for his tenure sitting on the Board of Directors. Director 

Corbin thanked the entire Board of Directors for their support with all of the District’s projects and their 

continued support of the employees.  

CONSENT CALENDAR –  

MSC¹ (Doolittle/Floen) 5/0/0 motion carried to approve the Consent Calendar. 

Ayes:  Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, Reynolds, and Unger  

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

MIKE REYNOLDS FORMAL RESIGNATION – Director Mike Reynolds informed the Board of Directors of 

his resignation and stated that he is retiring to Arkansas.  

Roll Call vote to accept Director Reynolds resignation. 

Ayes:  Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, and Unger   

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 27 of 78



 

 

JBWD BOARD MEMBER VACANCY – General Manager Ban gave the staff report and explained that the 

Board of Directors has 60 days to fill the vacant seat created by Director Mike Reynold’s resignation. 

If a new Board member is not appointed within 60 days San Bernardino County will step in and make their own 

appointment. After much discussion, the Board of Directors voted to appoint a new Director. 

• Receive applications by January 6, 2022. 
 

• If more than three (3) applications are submitted, then the Board will meet on January 10th, 11th, or 13th 

(depending on Board members schedules) to interview for the top three (3) candidates. 
 

• At the January 19, 2022 Board meeting the Board will interview the selected three (3) candidates, with 

an option to defer to February 2, 2022 Board meeting if a decision cannot be reached on January 19, 

2022. 
 

• Director Reynolds was elected by an “at-large election” meaning that the Board of Directors may 

appoint a new Director from any Division in the District, or they have the option to appoint an applicant 

from within Division 2 boundary. 
 

• February 13, 2022 is the deadline to appoint a new Director. 

MSC¹ (Jarlsberg/Doolittle) 4/0/0 motion carried to appoint a new Director and directed staff to begin the 

application process. 

Ayes:  Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, and Unger  

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT – General Manager Ban gave updates on the following: 

• Community Water System Alliance Advocacy Group – Chromium 6 has been put on hold for the time 

being. 

• Urban Water Management Plan with Kennedy Jenks 

• Tilford Project may be put on hold due to increasing prices with pipe. 

• Well 14 – Waiting for Scada to be installed and informed the Board members of a small factory issue 

with the chlorine. 

Kathleen Radnich, Public Information Officer reported as follows: 

• 2022 Classes and meetings currently slated (please check calendar on our website at www.jbwd.com. 

• Joshua Tree Propagation Program 

• January Market Booth theme addresses JBWD CIRP program, explaining the steps to replace our 

infrastructure. 

• Strategic Partner Grants 

DIRECTOR MEETING REPORTS –Each Director commented on the meetings they attended. 

FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS – President Unger read off the list of the upcoming meetings. 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS – Director Jarlsberg motioned to nominate Director Doolittle for Vice President and 

President Unger seconded. 

MSC¹ (Jarlsberg/Unger) 4/0/0 motion carried. 

Ayes:  Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, and Unger  

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

 

 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 28 of 78

http://www.jbwd.com/


 

 

Director Doolittle motioned to nominate Vice President Floen as President.  President Unger seconded. 
 

MSC¹ (Jarlsberg/Unger) 4/0/0 motion carried. 

Ayes:  Doolittle, Floen, Jarlsberg, and Unger  

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

ADJOURNMENT – MSC¹ (Unger/Jarlsberg) motion carried to adjourn the Board of Directors meeting of 

December 15, at 7:05 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Sarah Johnson, Acting General Manager 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 29 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 30 of 78



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

MEETING AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 

 

Board of Directors DATE: January 19, 2022 

 

REPORT TO: Board of Directors  

PREPARED BY: Anne Roman, Director of Finance 

TOPIC: 1ST QUARTER ENDING 09/30/21 FINANCIAL REPORT 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive report, ask questions, and approve report. 

 

ANALYSIS: The 1st quarter ending 09/30/21 Financial Report is attached 

and was reviewed in detail at the 01/12/22 Finance Committee 

meeting. See Financial Report Summary page for highlights.   
 

A note about using this report:  

 

• First quarter reporting is the least valuable since 

minimal data exists.  

• Keep in mind that both revenues and expenses are 

generally not incurred evenly throughout the year.  

Some costs may be incurred early on, others near year 

end.   

• Each Department Head manages their own budget and 

can better provide details of budget vs. costs.   

• This is an OPERATING report.  CAPITAL COSTS are 

not included in this reporting. Capital reporting 

requires more analysis and involvement from Project 

Managers and will be provided on a by project/by 

request basis.  

• Analysis continues throughout the year and only the 

06/30 Audited financial statements contain final 

figures.   

 

  

STRATEGIC PLAN 

ITEM: 

N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 31 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 32 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 33 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 34 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 35 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 36 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 37 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 38 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 39 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 40 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 41 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 42 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 43 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 44 of 78



 

 

JANUARY 14, 2022 

J O S H U A  B A S I N  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T  

VOTING AREA 
REDISTRICTING SERVICES  

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 45 of 78



L E T T E R  O F  I N T E R E S T  
 
Mr. Jeff A. Hoskinson 
Atkinson,  Andelson,  Loya, Rudd & Romo 
20 Pacif ica, Suite 1100 
Irvine,  CA 92618 

Re: Proposal to Provide Voting Area Redistricting Services 

Dear Mr .  Hoskinson:  

Cooperative Strategies,  LLC is pleased to submit the enclosed proposal 
("Proposal") to provide demographic services to assist  in reviewing and 
potentia lly adjusting the voting areas for Joshua Basin Water Distr ict ("JBWD" or 
"Water District") .  

For more than 25 years, Cooperative Strategies has provided services to public  
agencies throughout Cal ifornia.  Our phi losophy is  to provide relat ionship-based 
consult ing services and to thoroughly understand our c lients '  specif ic needs.  

Given our long history of working with public  agencies our expertise in analyzing 
and evaluating demographic data, Cooperative Strategies is uniquely qualif ied to 
assist the Water District in this process. We've provided similar services to more 
than 50 public agencies across the State of Cal ifornia ("State") .    

Thank you for the opportunity to submit the enclosed Proposal.  Should you have 
any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely,  

 

David Lopez 
Executive Director

1 / 1 4 / 2 0 2 2  

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 46 of 78



T A B L E  O F  C O N T E N T S  
 

S E C T I O N          P A G E  

A B O U T  U S  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1  

S C O P E  O F  S E R V I C E S  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5  

K E Y  P E R S O N N E L  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 0  

P A S T  P R O J E C T S  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 4  

R E F E R E N C E S  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 9  

F E E  P R O P O S A L  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2 1  

 

 

 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 47 of 78



 

 

ABOUT US 
O U R  A B I L I T Y  T O  S E R V E  Y O U  

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 48 of 78



 

 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 49 of 78



 

 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 50 of 78



 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 51 of 78



 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
V O T I N G  A R E A  R E D I S T R I C T I N G  S E R V I C E S  

 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 52 of 78



V O T I N G  A R E A  R E D I S T R I C T I N G  
Cooperative Strategies has aided a number of public  agencies throughout the 
State with the creation and implementation of voting areas. When drawing Voting 
Areas,  we uti l ize the following legal considerations:  

• Each area shall  contain nearly equal    
number of inhabitants based on total  
population with a variance of up to 10 
percent between the largest and 
smallest areas 
• Comply with the FVRA in that members 
of a protected class do not have their  
voting rights di luted through the 
creation of voting areas 
• Be compact and contiguous,  as much 
as possible 
• Follow man-made and natural  geographic features, as much as possible 
• Respect incumbency where possible 
• Consider other local criter ia 
 

Once several  maps that meet the above criter ia 
are created,  we review them with staff and legal  
counsel to ensure legal compliance.  The maps 
are also shared with the Board for review and 
comment prior to receiving public input.  
 

Public  input can take the form of public  
hearings at Board meetings or in town hall  
meetings where community members can review 
the information and provide feedback.   

After a ll  feedback is compiled,  the Water Distr ict can adjust the maps as it  desires 
before ult imately deciding on the map that best meets the needs of the 
community. Cooperative Strategies then aids in the approval and adoption 
process to f inal ize and implement the new Voting Areas. The following scope of 
work outlines the specif ic  activ it ies and tasks involved in Cooperative Strategies'  
Voting Area redistricting services.   

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 53 of 78



S T A T E M E N T  O F  W O R K  

Voting Area Redistricting 

ACTIVITY TASKS 
1. 
Assessment of 
Voting Areas 
and 2020 
Census 

1.A. Prepare Census Data Analysis for Trustee Areas 
This task involves analyzing 2020 Census data to obtain 
information on population within the Distr ict to determine 
the population within each voting area and for use in any 
potential adjustments.  
1.B. Evaluate Population Balance of Current Voting 
Areas 
This task involves determining whether the current voting 
areas meet the population balance requirements uti lizing 
the 2020 Census.   Cooperative Strategies shall prepare a 
report outlining the population within each voting area 
based on the 2020 Census and a determination of the 
population variance between the largest and smallest 
areas.  
1.C. Attend Virtually and Present at Meeting of Board of 
Education 
This task involves one (1) virtual meeting to present at a 
meeting of the Board of Directors to review the data from 
the 2020 Census and review criteria for adjustments of 
voting areas, if  required by the Census results or if  
requested by the Board. 

2. 
Adjust Voting 
Areas Based on 
2020 Census  
(if required)  

2.A. Create Conceptual Trustee Areas 
This task involves using Census data and GIS data gathered 
to prepare up to three (3) conceptual Voting Area 
scenarios.  This task wil l  involve preparing alternative 
Voting Area boundary proposals for consideration, 
including maps and demographic data for comparative 
purposes.  
2.B. Virtually Present to Board of Directors 
This task involves one (1) virtual meeting to present the 
conceptual scenarios to the Board for comment and review.  
2.C. Revise Scenarios #1 
This task involves revising up to three (3) conceptual 
scenarios based on feedback from the public and the Board.  

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 54 of 78



ACTIVITY TASKS 
2.D. Virtually Present Final Scenarios to Board of 
Directors 
This task involves one (1) virtual meeting to present the 
final scenarios to the Board for approval of adjusted Voting 
Areas.  
2.E. Assist in Implementation 
This task involves assist ing with processing the new Voting 
Areas with the County Registrar of Voters.  

 

 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 55 of 78



 

 

KEY PERSONNEL 
Y O U R  T E A M  O F  I N D U S T R Y  E X P E R T S  

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 56 of 78



D A V I D  L O P E Z  

E X E C U T I V E  D I R E C T O R ,  
W E S T E R N  R E G I O N  

David Lopez brings over 25 years of 
experience in managing project teams 
within the client service industry.  He 
assists both Public Agencies and Local 

Education Agencies with utilization of Community Facilities 
Districts ("CFDs") as facilities funding options, trustee area 
redistr ict ing, facilities master planning efforts, enrollment 
projections, developer impact fee studies, redevelopment 
services and other specialized demographic needs. 

In addition to being actively involved with client relations and 
outreach endeavors nationwide, David presents training topics 
at COE-sponsored meetings and various regional events 
hosted by and for public agencies. 

Education 

•  B.A. ,  American History, University of California, 
Berkeley 

Areas of Expertise 

•  Trustee/Voting Areas 
•  CFD Formation & Administration 
•  Community Engagement 
•  Demographic Studies 
•  Enrollment Projections 
•  Facil it ies Master Planning 
•  Redevelopment 

Notable Accomplishments 

•  Currently serves over 100 Publ ic Agencies cl ients 
throughout 16 CA counties 

•  Involved in the formation of more than 50  
•  CFDs from 2008 to present 

Sample Experience 

Apple Valley Unified School District, CA 
Capacity Analysis, Developer Fee 
Justification Studies, Facilities Usage Fee 
Studies 

City of Beverly Hills, CA 
Disclosure Compliance Services; CFD 
Administration 

Conejo Valley Unified School District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies, 
Enrollment Projections, Redistricting, 
Trustee/ Voting Areas 

East Orange County Water District, CA 
Trustee/Voting Areas 

Lodi Unified School District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies; 
Enrollment Projections; Facilities Master 
Planning; Facilities Usage Fees; 
myschoolLOCATION 
 

Los Osos Community Services District, CA 
Trustee/Voting Areas 

Menifee Union School District, CA 
CFD Administration; CFD Formation; 
Demographic Analysis; Developer 
Negotiations; Enrollment Projections; 
Funding Programs, Redistricting 

Paso Robles Joint Unified School District, 
CA 
Redevelopment, Developer Fee Justification 
Studies, Attendance Boundaries, 
Trustee/Voting Areas. Redistricting 
 

Perris Elementary School District, CA 
CFD Administration, Clean Energy Services, 
Developer Fee Justification Studies, 
Redevelopment, Trustee/Voting Areas 

Port San Luis Harbor District 
Trustee/Voting Areas 

Victor Elementary School District, CA 
CFD Administration; Continuing Disclosure; 
Enrollment Projections, Trustee/Voting Areas 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 57 of 78



J U S T I N  R I C H  

E X E C U T I V E  D I R E C T O R ,  
W E S T E R N  R E G I O N  

Justin Rich brings over 15 years of  
experience in school faci l i t ies 
planning and finance. He assists LEAs 

with their  Faci l i t ies Master Planning efforts,  
special ized demographic analyses,  and municipal 
advisory services.  He has been involved in numerous 
community outreach efforts related to fac il ity  
planning,  general obligation bond elections, school 
attendance boundaries/c losures and Voting Area 
redistr icting.   

In addition to being actively involved with cl ient 
relat ions and outreach endeavors,  Justin has presented 
on various topics at industry conferences and events.  

Education 

• M.P.A.,  Public Administration, California State 
University, Long Beach 

• B.A.,  Polit ical  Science, University of  Cal ifornia,  Los 
Angeles 

Areas of Expertise 

• Trustee/Voting Areas 
• Facil i t ies Master Planning 
• Community Engagement 
• Development Impact Analyses 
• Boundary Planning 

Notable Accomplishments 

• MSRB Series 50, Municipal Advisor Representative.  
• Advised on nearly $7 bi l l ion in municipal bond 

transactions for School Distr icts and community 
college districts.  

Sample Experience 

Riverside Community College District, CA 
Voting Area Creation Services 

Riverside Unified School District, CA 
Voting Area Creation Services 

Castro Valley Unified School District, CA 
Bond Election Services; Financial Advisory 

Lake Elsinore Unified School District, CA 
Boundary Planning; Developer Fee 
Justification Studies; Facilities Master 
Planning; Demographic Analysis; Developer 
Negotiations 

Menifee Union School District, CA 
Financial Advisory; Demographic Analysis; 
Developer Negotiations; Enrollment 
Projections 

Moreland School District, CA 
Boundary Planning; Developer Fee 
Justification Studies 

Mountain View School District, CA 
Developer Negotiations; Developer Fee 
Justification Studies; Bond Election Services; 
Financial Advisory 

Norris School District, CA 
Facilities Master Plan; Financial Advisory 

Oakley Union Elementary School District, 
CA 
Bond Election Services; Financial Advisory 

Pasadena Unified School District, CA 
Boundary Planning; Developer Fee 
Justification Studies; Redevelopment  

Richland School District, CA 
Facilities Master Planning; Developer Fee 
Justification Studies; Enrollment Projections 

San Dieguito Union High School District, 
CA 
Long Range Facilities Task Force; Bond 
Election Services; Financial Advisory 

San Gabriel Unified School District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies, Facilities 
Usage Fee Studies 

 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 58 of 78



A N D R E W  B I S H O P  
S E N I O R  A S S O C I A T E  
D I R E C T O R  

Andrew Bishop has provided 
financial ,  demographic, and 
cartographic services to a wide 

variety of LEAs s ince 2005. His expert ise with 
Geographic Information Systems has helped i l lustrate 
a var iety of  demographic and facil it ies planning 
services for hundreds of School Distr icts.   

Andrew also has extensive experience in calculating 
student generation rates to determine future student 
enrol lment and the result ing impact on school 
facil i t ies.  

Education 

• B.A.,  Geography, University of  Cal ifornia, Los 
Angeles 

Areas of Expertise 

• Developer Fee Just if ication Studies 
• School Faci l i t ies Needs Analyses 
• Enrollment Projections  
• Trustee/Voting Areas 
• Capacity Analyses 
• Geographic Information Systems 
• Assessment Distr ict Administration 

Notable Accomplishments 

• Final ist,  NYC Department of Education Call for 
Innovations,  Enhancing School Zoning Efforts 
by Predict ing Population change 

 

 

Sample Experience 

Alum Rock Union Elementary 
School District, CA 
Enrollment Projections 

Anaheim Elementary School 
District, CA 
Trustee/Voting Areas 

Beverly Hills Unified School 
District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies 

Bonita Unified District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies; 
RIMD Administration 

Byron Union School District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies; 
Enrollment Projections 

Capistrano Unified School District, 
CA 
Annual & Five-Year Reports; Developer 
Fee Justification Studies 

Fremont Unified School District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies; 
Enrollment Projections; School 
Facilities Needs Analyses 

Hesperia Unified School District, CA 
Annual & Five-Year Reports; Developer 
Fee Justification Studies; Enrollment 
Projections; School Facilities Needs 
Analyses 

Irvine Unified School District, CA 
Annual & Five-Year Reports; Developer 
Fee Justification Studies; RIMD 
Administration; School Facilities Needs 
Analyses 

Menifee Union School District, CA 
Annual & Five-Year Reports; Developer 
Fee Justification Studies; School 
Facilities Needs Analyses 

Palm Springs Unified School 
District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies 

    

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 59 of 78



 

 

PAST PROJECTS 
P R O V E N  S U C C E S S  S T O R I E S  

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 60 of 78



P A S T  P R O J E C T S  

Please see below for a l ist of some of the agencies we have previously provided 
similar services to.  Please note, we cannot disclose the full  l ist of our cl ients for  
whom we have performed liabi l i ty analysis services as many engaged our services 
through legal counsel which remain under attorney-client pr ivi lege.  

District Name Location Service Type 
Adelanto Elementary 

School Distr ict 
San Bernardino 

County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 

Alta Loma School District 
San Bernardino 

County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Alvord Unified 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Anaheim Elementary 
School Distr ict 

Orange County 
CVRA Analysis & 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Anaheim Union High 
School Distr ict 

Orange County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 

Antelope Valley Union 
High School Distr ict 

Los Angeles 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Antioch Unified School 
Distr ict 

Contra Costa 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Apple Valley Unified 
School Distr ict 

San Bernardino 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Banning Unified 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Beaumont Unified 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Benicia Unified School 
Distr ict 

Solano County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 

Bonsall Unified 
School Distr ict 

San Diego 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 61 of 78



District Name Location Service Type 
City of 

Garden Grove 
Orange County CVRA Analysis 

Conejo Valley Unified 
School Distr ict 

Ventura County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Corona-Norco Unified 

School Distr ict 
Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Davis Joint Unified School 
Distr ict 

Yolo County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Desert Sands Unified 

School Distr ict 
Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Diablo Water Distr ict 
Contra Costa 

County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Dublin Unified 
School Distr ict 

Alameda 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Etiwanda 
School Distr ict 

San Bernardino 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Fallbrook Union High 
School Distr ict 

San Diego 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Fullerton 
School Distr ict 

Orange County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Garden Grove Unified 

School Distr ict 
Orange County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Hacienda La Puente 
Unified School District 

Los Angeles 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Hesperia Unified 
School Distr ict 

San Bernardino 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Hueneme Elementary 
School Distr ict 

Ventura County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Imperial Valley Community 

College District 
Imperial County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

La Mesa-Spring Valley 
School Distr ict 

San Diego 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 62 of 78



District Name Location Service Type 
Lincoln Unified 
School Distr ict 

San Joaquin 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Moorpark Unified School 
Distr ict 

Ventura County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Moreno Valley Unified 

School Distr ict 
Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Mt. Diablo Unified School 
Distr ict 

Contra Costa 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

North Orange County 
Community College 

Distr ict 
Orange County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Novato Unified 
School Distr ict 

Marin County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Oakley Union Elementary 

School Distr ict 
Contra Costa 

County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 

Ojai Unified School District Ventura County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Ontario-Montclair 

School Distr ict 
San Bernardino 

County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 

Oxnard 
School Distr ict 

Ventura County 
CVRA Analysis & 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Palm Springs Unified 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Perris Elementary 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Redlands Unified 
School Distr ict 

San Bernardino 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Rim of the World Unified 
School Distr ict 

San Bernardino 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Riverside Community 
College District 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 63 of 78



District Name Location Service Type 
Romoland 

School Distr ict 
Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Rowland Unified School 
Distr ict 

Los Angeles 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

San Juan Unified School 
Distr ict 

Sacramento 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

San Mateo County 
Community College 

Distr ict 

San Mateo 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Santa Paula Unified School 
Distr ict 

Ventura County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Santa Rosa  

City Schools 
Sonoma County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Snowline Joint Unified 
School Distr ict 

San Bernardino 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

South Whittier School 
Distr ict 

Los Angeles 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Temecula Valley Unified 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Val Verde Unified 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Vallecitos Elementary 
School Distr ict 

San Diego 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Vallejo City Unified School 
Distr ict 

Solano County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Victor Elementary 

School Distr ict 
San Bernardino 

County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Victor Valley Union High 

School Distr ict 
San Bernardino 

County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Will iam S. Hart Union High 

School Distr ict 
Los Angeles 

County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 

 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 64 of 78



 

 

REFERENCES 
T R A N S P A R E N C Y  I S  T R U S T  

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 65 of 78



CLIENT CONTACT INFORMATION 

Diablo Water District 
Dan Muelrath 

General Manager 
925.625.3798 

dmuelrath@diablowater.org 

Hacienda La Puente Unif ied  
School Distr ict  

Annie Bui 
Associate Superintendent 

626.933.3820 
anniebui@hlpusd.k12.ca.us 

Fullerton School District  

Robert Pletka 
Superintendent 

714.447.7400 
suptoff ice@myfsd.org 

Garden Grove Unif ied 

Dr. Gabriela Mafi 
Superintendent 

714.663.6000 
gmafi@ggusd.us 

North Orange County Community 
College District  

Fred Will iams 
Vice Chancellor 

714.808.4746 
fwil liams@nocccd.edu 

 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 66 of 78



 

 

FEE PROPOSAL 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 67 of 78



The proposed fee for Cooperative Strategies to perform the services as descr ibed 
in Section 2 of this Proposal is  outl ined below.  

 

SERVICE DESCRIPTION PROPOSED FEE 

Assessment of Voting Areas and 2020 
Census 

$4,000 
(Plus Expenses Up to $400) 

Adjust Voting Areas Based on 2020 
Census 

$9,500 
(Plus Expenses Up to $950) 

 

Should the District request attendance at additional meetings beyond those 
identified in Exhibit A, attendance is not guaranteed and will  be subject to 
limited availability.  If available, attendance wil l be virtual,  and the fee shall  
be $850 per additional meeting. 
 
Should the Distr ict request additional scenarios beyond those identif ied in 
Exhibit A, the fee shall  be $375 per additional scenario.  
 
Should the School Distr ict wish to uti l ize a web-based tool for members of 
the community to provide scenarios or revise map options, there shall  be 
an additional fee of $5,000 for such service.  

 

Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 68 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 69 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 70 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 71 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 72 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 73 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 74 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 75 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 76 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 77 of 78



Regular Board of Diectors Meeting 
January 19, 2022  Page 78 of 78




